[image: image1.emf]
Title of the project: Improvement of energy efficiency through an inter-municipal  management network

Tender Reference: EuropeAid/133-339/L/ACT/ME – 2013/335-263/05

CLARIFICATION No 1
Bar, 18th September 2014
"
The Contracting Authority, following the clarifications questions received within the time limits set in the Instructions to tenderers, would like to herewith provide all prospective tenderers with the following set of clarifications to support the preparation of the tender and smooth implementation of the future contracts.
	Question 1:
	Regarding TENDER REF: EuropeAid/133-339/L/ACT/ME – 2013/335-263/05 I got one question regarding this paragraph: "In order to fulfill this task on best way possible, Contractor should analyze technical documentation of all buildings and other facilities, first, then collect all information on energy (electricity, energy and sanitary water) consumption, and visit sites (as many times as necessary) in order to compare facts from technical documentations and on site and to collect missing data". Question is: Who will collect and provide all technical documentations for all public building? Is that obligation of each Municipality?

	Answer 1:
	All existed data will be provided by municipalities. However, a lot of these data is old and collection of the data will have to be done also at field in order to compare with existing data and to finish data collection according to actual conditions of the buildings.

	Question 2:
	Please publish in due course on the website of the Union of Municipalities of Montenegro "existed methodology and questionnaire" relating to "INVITATION TO TENDER FOR Engagement of Consultant for Energy Auditing of public facilities - Tender Reference: EuropeAid / 133 to 339 / L / ACT / ME - 2013/335 to 263/05." The only methodology that I know is from the Ordinance on the methodology of performing energy audits of buildings sends you attached - it is an official document issued by the Ministry of Economy.

	Answer 2:
	The Municipality of Bar prepared its own questionnaire and methodology and performed preliminary energy audits of public buildings under its jurisdictions even in 2012. After that in May 2013 the Ministry of Economy adopted the “Rulebook on Methodology for Energy Audits Performing”. While the methodology used by the Municipality is in general in line with the Methodology prescribed as legally binding by the Ministry, the existing templates developed by the Municipality of Bar shall be reviewed and harmonized with it. Therefore, the energy audits shall be performed using the adjusted questionnaire, in line with the official Methodology issued by the Ministry of Economy. 

	Question 3:
	Is there a prescribed form (content) report on preliminary energy audits for the work involved and whose task is to give shape to this report? From the form of reports for preliminary energy audits also depends on the volume of work that needs to do if the bidder gets the job. The same applies to the methodology or questionnaire.

	Answer 3:
	The answer is given in previous answer. The volume of work is defined with the Rulebook that you mentioned.

	Question 4:
	Does "Annex C1" provide a list of all the objects for which it is necessary to do energy audits? If it is not, please provide full list.

	Answer 4:
	The list (Annex c1) contains all the facilities which are planned to be audited. We attached Annex c1 again, with minor changes. The changes are given in the „track changes“. 

	Question 5:
	From my experience, I know that "the technical documentation of all buildings and other facilities" is very hard to get or does not exist for most objects. Given that it is 40 or more objects in my experience it is expected that there is no documentation for 20 or more objects. What happens when we have no "technical documentation" of an object? Is it the obligation of that entity that gets the job to independently "collect" all the necessary information that is needed to raise the "technical documentation"? How will this affect the time spent in the sense that it is realistic to extend? Let me clarify. That someone will spot the place to collect the data to be obtained from the "technical documentation" will actually do the job of the designer in analyzing the current state of the object for which there is no project documentation. If the average of the analysis of the technical documentation of an object need one day to collect the same data in the absence of the technical documentation is required 3 days. It is another story that the existence of the project documentation for some objects not preferred because it does not match the current state of the object.

	Answer 5:
	Energy audits should be performed including site visits which are indispensable. The Rulebook on Energy Auditing defines methodology for preliminary audits. 
Even in the case when technical documentation is available, data will have to be checked at the field and corrected. It's our advice to calculate the price taking in the consideration that checking of the available data takes the same time as collection of the data at the field if technical documentation is not available. 

	Question 6:
	Among the experts who will do the job is required "to have experience and good overview of energy efficiency at the municipal level and proven experience working with municipalities in the field of energy auditing of public facilities". What does this mean concretely? How can one have a "good overview of energy efficiency at municipal level" if done so far only a few detailed energy audits for buildings under the jurisdiction of municipalities? How many references necessary to have in making energy audits of buildings under the jurisdiction of municipalities (and which municipalities) to satisfy this criterion?

	Answer 6:
	When “experience” is required it means that at least one performed (described) project is necessary (if not stipulated different). The evaluation committee consists of persons qualified to assess the relevance of the previous experience.

	Question 7:
	Among the experts also seeks "to have knowledge and most recent experience in South-East Europe". What kind of knowledge?

	Answer 7:
	It includes any country in the South East Europe, including Montenegro too.

	Question 8:
	How can one prove that someone has experience in the "preparation of inventory of building stock and similar documents"? Is this one of the tasks in the present work, and if not why are you asking this? I would have requested that this requirement is ejected from the tender documentation. I see no purpose in it that I'm looking for experts in this area if it is not the subject of the work.

	Answer 8:
	The requirement that we set regarding the experience in “preparation of inventory of buildings or similar document” is given with the purpose. Namely, the municipalities are obliged to submit data on their buildings to the Ministry of Economy, each year through the Central Information System. On the other hand, the “Guidelines on Energy Efficiency Measures Implementation” (by-law adopted 24th September 2012) defines content of the Central Information System where inventory of buildings is at the first place. Thus, having such an expert who will perform energy audits knowing requirements and scope of Inventory will have essential importance for execution of work. Experience may be proved by submitting the proof that this work is performed at least once.

	Question 9:
	The tender document says "Tender guarantee is not requested.". But it will be asked, "Performance guarantee" explaining "The performance guarantee shall be held against payment to the Contracting Authority for any loss resulting from the Contractor's failure to fully and properly perform his obligations under the contract.". At the moment there are 7 of companies that are authorized to conduct energy audits of buildings. According to the Law on Energy Efficiency ("Official Gazette of Montenegro", No. 29/10) there is no body like Engineers Chamber of Montenegro, which assumes the powers of the Ministry of Economy and there are no court experts for energy audits. The price of such a guarantee in the event that a commercial company owned by me gets this job is equal to the sum of the cost of the bank guarantee to be sought and the entire amount of the guarantee. This is something I cannot agree and my request would be that this item is removed from the draft contract. Let me clarify. The first authorization for energy audits is issued less than a year. Until now there was no chance that any of the business entities that are authorized for energy audits do this kind of work. Financial institutions are not familiar with this type of work; they have no experience in this business or people who know how to assess risk so for them this is a 100% risk - no commercial company in Montenegro ever done energy audits.

	Answer 9:
	 This is a contractual request and not a specific request related to energy audit projects. It is the guarantee that the service provider will execute the work properly and timely.

	Question 10:
	If I gave the bid shall attach any documentation that I downloaded from the site - a total of 6 files. 3 are in PDF format and they'd submitted in the original with the signature and seal on each page. Other 3 documents should be completed and printed. Also signed and stamped. I am interested in whether the document whose title begins with "Annex 50" needs something to fill out or he attached the original with duly signed and sealed site?

	Answer 10:
	Annex 50 should not be filled out. It is given just for the information. It will be filled out by the Contracting Authority with the tenderer that will have the contract awarded.

	Question 11:
	None of the business organizations that have requested authorization to conduct energy audits of buildings do not meet the condition of one work that was done in the last 3 years of similar complexity as this job. According to the Law on Energy Efficiency ("Official Gazette of Montenegro", No. 29/10) no one outside of Montenegro cannot validate their authority. Whoever he wants to make an offer will have to team up with someone outside of Montenegro who worked at least one job of similar complexity. This is another application which it considers burdensome. Like physical person I have good references and I think that's enough.

	Answer 11:
	The condition which requires that bidder has experience in performing similar project in previous three years is dossier common standard requirement that ensures that the assigned work will be performed with success. All bidders should find the appropriate modality in order to meet the requirement, otherwise, the offer can’t be assessed as technically compliant. Moreover, the procedure of energy auditing of buildings in Montenegro started 5 year ago.
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